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£baritabk institutons of Wliulpeg
'At a meeting of the Historical Society, held in the City

Council Chamber, on the evening of Tuesday, February 21st,
theIollowing paper was read by Mrs. Bryce, wife of Rev. Dr.
Bryce, of this city

In giving a history of the charitable institutions of Win-
nipeg, we naturally begin with the oldest and most important,
viz.: the Winnipeg General Hospital.

Any one examining the public edifices of our city is sure
to have his atténtion drawn to a group of buildings belonging
to the hospital, occupying a block between MeDermot and
Bannatyne Avenues, and West of Nena. A closer examina-
tion of these buildings and their uses will show that the Win-
nipeg General Hospital, like the City of Rome, was not built
in a day. Building after building has been added, according
to the requirements of our city and Province, and we are

pleased to think that we have such a memorial of the advance-
ment of medical science in our midst.

The oldest of' the group of buildings was opened to re-
ceive patients in 1884 but earlier records show that the hos-
pital had a history of twelve years' duration previous to that
date.

The Winnipeg General Hospital was organized December
13th, 1872, and its Act of Incorporation was passed May
14th, 1875. The board of management applying for the
Act were George Young, Gilbert McMicken,W. N. Kennedy,
Rev. W. C. Clark, Thos. Lusted, G. B. Spencer, George
Bryce, 4. G. B. Bannatyne, J. H. Ashdown, Stewart Mul-
vey, A. G. Jackes, J. H. O'Donnell, Jos. Royal, J. H. Mc-
Tavish, and W. G. Fonseca.

Drs. O'Donnell, Jackes and Lynch were the medical meli
chiefly associated with the hospital in the earlier period of its
history.
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Anyone who remembers Winnipeg in those early years
as a mere village, with its new population, mostly young men,
constantly being added to from the East, its crowded board-
ing houses, its imperfect tuildings, hastily erected to accom-
modate new arrivals, the absence of sanitary arrangements
and the prevalence of typhoid fever, can speak of the neces-
sity for an hospital even at that stage of the city's existence.

Yet it was not one of the new arrivals who was the chief
benefactor in this matter, but one who had come to Red
River when a mere lad, and who had spent most of his life
there, the Hon. A. G. B. Bannatyne.

The first building used for hospital purposes was on the
banks of the Red River,'somewhere near the foot of Lombard
Street. The second was a log house in Point Douglas, rented
from the late Hon. John Norquay. The imperfections of

. - both these buildings soon.convinced the hospital board that
they must arise and build. The Messrs. MeDermot and
Bannatyne donated the present hospital site, afterwards en-
larged, and a building was erected on if in 1875, which was
occupied as an hospital until 1882.

During the financial struggles of this early period the hos-
pital board was more than once indebted to thie ladies of thé
city for substantial aid. As early as 1873 a bazaar was held
under the auspices of Mrs. Bannatyne for the benefit of the
hospital.

In the fall of 1877 the increasing demands upon the hos-
pital having brought it into financial difficulties, a meeting of
the ladies was called and a statement of its affairs laid before
them. The secretary treasurer showed that the hospital's
annual costi of maintenance was about $4,000, to meet which
there was : The local Government grant, $1,250; city grant,
$500 ; Dominion Government, for patients, $250 ; Hospital
Sunday, $300 ; private patients from $300 to $400, leaving
a large deficit to be made up from uncertain sources. The
hospital was at the time $700 in debt for maintenance.



The ladies willingly came to the rescue. TheCty was
divided into districts, two ladies being appointed to canvass
each. A generous response was made to their solicitations,
and in this way about $1,200 was raised. Later on the ladies
held a bazaar, or, as it was- called, an apron festival, by which
$400 more was realized.

About the same time a small addition was made to the
hospital, costing $150, the whole of which sum was kindly
donated by Mr. Moberly, a contractor, then in the city.

Such are a few of the facts looming through the miste
that usually obscure the dawn of history.

The years 1882 and 1883 pre, perhaps, the most pro-
gressive in the history of the General Hospital. In the boom
years the city had grown with abnormal rapidity and the re-
sources of the hospital were inadequate to meet the increasing

,demands upon it. Something had to be done to place its
affairs on a firmer footing.

The Act of Incorporation was amended in 1882, the board
of directors at the time being Hon. A. G. B. Bannatyne,
Alex. Brown, Acton Burrows, C. J. Brydges, G. F. Carru-
thers, Dr. Coivan, W. Hespeler,'Arthur F. Eden, J. M. Mac-
donnell, Alex. McArthur, Joseph Mulholland, J. H. Rowan,
T..C. Scoble, C. Sweeny and A. H.-Witcher.

The number of attending physicians had been jncreased,
and were now settled by by-laws to consist of sir attending
physicians, and not more than three consulting physicians..
J'hose attending at the time were Drs. Lynch, Codd, Good,
Kerr, Whiteford, and R. B. Ferguson;.consulting physicians,
Drs. Cowan, -Jackes and O'Donnell. The resident surgeon
now becomes a power in the hospital management, the flrst
being Dr. Mewburn. The amen'ded Act removed the limit
of property that could be legally held by the corporation. It
also empôwered the directors to raise money by mortgages.

The life membership fee, which had heretofore been $50,
was 0now raised to $100 and the name changed to Life Gover-
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nor. The annual fee, which had been $4, was increased to
$10. , , l".,

FINANCES.

In Januay, 1881, the Dominion Government, which had,
in former. times, been rather stingy in its dealings with the
hospital, passed an order in council, authorizing the payment
of 60 cents per day for each immigrant patient treated. At
the time of which I speak this was quite a source of revenue
to the directors, over $18,000 having been paid during the
two years.

In 1883 îhe Charity Aida Act passed by the*local Gov-
ernment secured to every hospital approved by the Governor
in Council payment of 25 cents per day for every free patient
treated. The City Council twi<e increased its grant during
these two years. The original annual grant of $500 was first
advanced to $1,200 and again to $5,000. A by-law at the
same time was passed, giving the city representation of one
on the board of directors for each $5,000 given. At the
present day the grant is $10,000. The municipalities began
to send in contributions more regularly, and Hospital Sun-
day became an established fact, although it has always been
difficult to have all the churches make their collections on the
same Sunday.

Perhaps the most pleasing event duripg these two years
was the establishment in 1883 of the suggestion of Mrs. W.
G. Dennison, of the Women's Hospital Aid Society, the ob-

ject being to supply the hospital with bedding, clothing and
other necessary comforts. Although the ladies of the city
had somewhat fitfully taken an interest in the hospital from
time to time, and by donations had supplied its wants, the or-
ganization of this society not only assured a more regular sup-
ply of household necessaries, but also a careful supérvision of
the same, and was a great relief to the boai-d of directors.
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BUILDINGS.

The hospital building which had been in use since 1875,
had during the boom years been fouud quite inadequate to
the growing requiremets of the city, and in 1881 a tpmpor-
ary location and building in Point Douglas had been pur-
chased from the Dominion Government at a cost of $5,000,
to be used until the old building could be moved from the
hospital site and a new building erected.

In addition to subscriptions of citizens to the building
fund, the board received from the Hudson's Bay Company
$2,000; from the C. P. R. a similar amount and from the
City Council a special grant of $5,000. A mortgagQ loan of
$25,000 was incurred. After the usual troubles and vicissi-
tudes attending on building operations 'at that -time, the new
hospital, costing $63,115.95, represented at the present time
by the general and administration buildings, was opened 13th
March, 1884, and was a great boon to the sick and suffering,
as well as to the attendants, as the Point Douglas building,
although roomier than the old hospital, was not even so well
suited for hosptal purpoees, and on account of an outbreak
of smallpox within its wals in May, 1882, the patients had
to be accommodated in tents on the prairie around it.

EQUIPMENT.
The increased- number of surgical cases made it neees-

sary at this timne to purchase a complete set of instruments,
4awhich was done at a cost of $762.

MEDICAL.
We have yet one more step in advance to record. A

number of medical practitioners in Winnipeg, including
nearly all the attending physicians at the hospital, having
taken steps to establish a medical school, application was made
by the faculty for permission for the students to attend lec-
tures, surgical and elinical, in the hospital. By-laws were
passed December 17th, 1883, regulating their fees and pro-
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viding for their conduct and supervision while in the hospital.
In 1884 then we find thi General Hospital in a much better
footing thin it had ever been before, alike as to its finances,
its buildings and the management of its affairs.

MORE RECENT YEARS.

In approaching more recent years it seems unnecessary to
enter into the details of the hospital's history, as its printed
records are available; and yet even a sketch would be incom-
plete without reference to the main features 6f advancement.
The hospital building was no sooner completed in 1884 than
the directors began to see that in the interests of medical
science the work of the hospital would have to be extend;ed.
But burdened as they were with a mortgage debt, for a large
amount of which some of them had become personally liable,
it could not be expected that they would immediately add to
their responsibilities.

The Jubilee years of Her Most Gracious Maj<esty, Queen
Victoria, always bring showers of blessings, and of these
showers a good many drops are sure to descend on the Winni-
peg General Hospital In 1887 the dipectors of the hospital
made an appeal to the public for a jubilee fund wherewith to
discharge the complete debt on the hospital property. The
response to the appeal amounted to $14,062.95, which not
only wiped out the debt, but left a cònsiderable balance in
the hands of the directors to undertake whatevei- extension
might be thought most desirable.

SCHOOL FOR NURSES.
The hospital had, up to this time, been indebted to outside

sources for its supply of nurses, but in order that the nursing
staff might be increased and a number be available for send-
ing out to city and country, a school for nurses was opened in
1887. To provide proper accommodation for these nurses
when off duty, a home was found to be a necessity. This
home became an established fact in November, 1888, and its
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occupation lkft a considerable amount of room in the hospital
to be used for the accommodation of patients. The directors
had also a maternity hospital in course of erection in 1888,
which was finished in December of that year. This branch
of medical work had, since 1883, en under the care of a
society of ladies, called the Christian Women's Union. At
ths stage it was almoast necessary, for the completion of the
nurses' course, and that of the medical students, that it should
be under the direction of the hospital authorities. The mem-
bers of the Women's Christian Union were quite willing that
it should be so transferred. Indeed, the proposal came from
their side.

An operating theatre and a disinfecting kiln was also ad-
ded to the equipment of the hospital in 1888 ; and a separ-
ate and roomy ward was set apart for the treatment of chil-
dren. The latter was fitly named the " Brydges Memorial
Ward for Children," in memory of Mr. Brydges. It was for
the purpose of formally opening this ward that Mr. Brydges
had gone to the hospital on the 16th February, 1889, when he
so suddenly died. During the same year, 1889, the hospital
and the board sustained another great loss in the death of
the president, the Hon. A. G. B. Bannatyne, who had been in
ill-health for several years.

The enterprises of 1887, even with the help of grants,
left the-board once more in debt, but by 1891 this was all paid
off and they were ready to undertake further extension.

The next important~building undertaken was an isolated
hospital for infectious diseases, as the general building had
now become too crowded to allow of wards being set apart
for this purpose. This building was finished and ready for
patients on the 26th January, 1893, and the following year
increased accommodation for nuises was added in connection
with it. There is but one more building to speak of, that
caled the Victoria Jubilee Addition, at present in course of
erection to the West of the main building, and connected
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-with it by a corrider. This building will be devoted altoge.
ther to surgical, cases, and will contain a roomy and well
lighted operating theatre. To meet the expenses of this

-handsome addition to the hospital the Provincial Government
and the City Council have each granted $10,000 ; $2,000
from Mr. W.. W. Ogilvie is available, and it is hoped that the
general subscriptions will bring the sum up to $50,000. Of
the lesser but very important equipments of the hospital-
the two -ambulances, for example--there is scarcely time to
speak.

The.hospital has always had a plentiful supply of water
from its own flowing- wells, pumped into the building by
steam power. It also has its own plant for electric lighting.

CONCLUSION.

In this sketch the hospital. buildings have chiefly been
spoken of, and indeed it is among the buildings of the hospi-
tal that its history can best be studied. From their extension
we get an idea of the number of sick that come there for
healing, from their uses we get a knowledge of the different
kinds of suffering that have to be relieved and the various me-
thods applied for their relief.

Of those who have given thought and care to the cotn-
mencement of the building up of the hospital, we can only
mention the presidents, A. G. B. Bannatyne aud Wm. Hes-
peler; the secretary treasurers, George. Bryoe; Alex. Mc-
Arthur, Acton Burrows, C. J. Brydges, J. F. Bain. Mr.
Hespeler and Hon. Justice Bain are still in office. The fol-
lowing is the present medical staff of the hospital, which
gives some idea of its growth :-

Consulting Staff.-J. H. O'Donnell, M.D.; Alfred Codd,
M.D.; E. Benson, M.D.; Jas.-Patterson, M.D.; J. M. Jones,
M.D.

Attending Physicians and Surgeons.-General wards
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physiciam: W. J. Neilson, MD.; W. S. England, M.D.;
R. M. Simpson, M.D.

Surgeons.-R. J. Blanchard, M.D.; H. H. Chown, M.D.;
J. S. Gray, MD.; A. J. Macdonnell, M.D. Specialists for
Diseases of Eye, Ear, Nose and Throat : J. W. Good, MD.;
W. Harvey Smith, M.D. Isolated Wards : E. S. Popham,
M.D..; E. W. Montgomery, M.D. Maternity Wards : J.
O. Todd, M.D.; A. W. Moody, M.D. Pathologist: Gordon
Bell, M.D.

Resident Staff.-Medical Superintendent: Wm. Chest-
nutt, M.D., with three resident assistants. 'Lady Superinten-
dent: Miss B. Holland, with thirty nurses in training, three
nurse graduates and two probationers.

During the last fifteen years the Act of Incorporation
and by-laws have several times been amended to suit the al-
tered circumstances of the hospital.

TUE WOMEN'S HOSPITAL AID SOCIETY.

This society has already' been mentioned in connection
with the General Hospital, and it is to the hospital that it
owes its allegiance. It was organized in 1883, the annual
membership fee being $2. Its object was to supply the hos-
pital with bedding, clothing and other necessary comforts.

The first officers were: President, Mrs. Aikens; Vice-
Presidents, Mesdames Brydges, Pinkham, Denison and Pit-
blado; Secretaries, the Misses Mingaye and Drever ; Trea-
surer, Miss Mingaye. Committees were also appointed for
various kinds of work

In order to enable the society to make a good beginning
the storekeepers of the city supplied goods at very reasonable
prices, and Mr. M. T. Hunter generou'ly paid for these goods
to the amount of $500. Thus the newly erected hospital
was well stoïcked with al the needed bedding and linen.

Since that time the society has had a very prosperous ca-
reer. Having no buildings of ifs own, it has had to be in-
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debted to friends for a place in which to convene. For a
number of years Mr. Sprado has allowed the society to hold its
monthly and committee meetings in one of the dining rooms
of the Manitoba Hotel. The recent fire rendered this society
homeless for the time being, but it is hoped that soon again
it will be found in comfortable quarters.

For a number of years the society raised its funds chiefly
by entertainments, an annual ball being given for the benefit
of the hospital, but the sentinent of many of its supporters
was found to be in favor of direct giving, and it was resolved
in 1892 that in future the society should depend more for its
income on the extension of its membership $ees, and other
larger or smaller subscriptions.

This plan was so successful that it seems to have been
adopted by the society as its permanent souroe of revenue.
Occasionally the funds are augmented by the proceeds of
entertainiments, but these are usually proferred to the society
by their promoters.

When a new building has been added to the hospital the
draft upon the resources.of the Aid society is larger than at
other times, as the members have not always limited them-
selves to the ordinary provision expected of them, but have
helped considerably with other furnishings. We may take
1897 as a normal year, when the cost of articles supplied by
the society amounted to $948.55. Two of the members,
Mesdames Bell and Sprague, collected money during the ju-
bilee year for -a new ambulance, as it was necessary to keep
one for infectious cases.

The presidents of this society have been Mesdames Aik-
ens, Lynch, Pinkham, Farrell, F. W. Harris, Ewart, Street,
Blanchard, Adams, Somerset Aikens, Drewry, Moffat, and
Mrs. H. Bell, at present in office.

Secretaries : The Misses Mingaye and·Drever; treasurers:
Miss Mingaye, Mrs. Macfarlane; secretary treasurers: Miss
Aikens, Mesdames Eden, J. G. Moore and Mrs. E. M. Wood,
at prs«ent in office.

y
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THE CHRISTIAN WOMAN'S UNION.
The Christian Woman's Union owee its origin, in March,

1883, to a few devoted women whoSe strong desire was to
bring together women of different Protestant denominations
and varied predilections and to unite them in some important
work in which they could all be interested. The proposed

THE WOMAN'S HOME

work naturally took the form of work among women. A
mass-meeting of the women of the city was called and met in
the oMd court house near the site of the present City Hall, an
ancient landmark that has since disappeared.• A board of
management was chosen with Mrs. Galton, sister of Mrs. W.

4
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IR. Mulock, as president, she having been one of the leading
spirits in the movement.

Collectors weretappointed to raise funds and the city was
divided into districts for this purpose. In order to receive a
Governinent grant an Act of Incorporation was applied for
early in 1894 under the name of the Ohristian Women's
Union of Winnipeg. The Act was passed by the LegisIature
in April of that year and a grant of $500 wa given, now
$250. The annual fees are $3.00; life membership, $50.
The 'ladies applying for this Act were Mrs. Mary E. J.
Aikens, honorary president ; Mrs. Catherine Rowe, presi-
dent ;Mrs. Eleanor Wliitla, vice-president; Miss Mary Jaz-
drowski, treasurer ; Mrs. Annie Monk, corresponding secre-
tary; Mrs. Jeima Irwin, recording secretary; Mrs." Marion
Bryce, 1st directress; Mrs. Matilda Lynch, 2nd directress.

The frst work undertaken was a home for young women
earzing their living in the city and absent from their own
homes. The old Bannatyne residence on the river bank, with
its grounds extending from Bannatyne to MeDermot St., was
rented for the purpose of the home, which was opened in the-
spring of 1883.

This institution was afterwards moved to a smaller house
on Hargrave Street, but it was not taken advantage of by
those for whom it was intended-it rather seemed to attract
the idle and incompetent, so in a short time it ws thought
advisable to have it closed. In the meantime, with the glad
approval of the leading physicians of the city, the society
had opened a Maternity Hospital in the Banniatyne building.

The hospital was not designed only to benefit the class
iisually styled unfortunate, but also poor married women who
were destitute of comforts in their own .miserable shanty
homes at that time so coinmon. There were also private
wards for ladies coming from the country and from distant
towns for the advantage of good medical skill and nursing.

The Bannatyne building having been sold, the naternity
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hospital was moved in September, 1884, to a large house for-
merly occupied by Sheriff Armstrong, at the foot of May
Street, Point Douglas, and in 1886 it was again moved to the
adjoining roomy house, the former residence of the late Major
Nioriee.

These frequent changes of -residence shewed that the
board were never altogether satisfied with the hospital quar-
ters, and indeed, they were always painfully aware that their
accommodation came far short of the requirements of modern
science. Although among nearly 200 adult inmates they
were so fortunate as never to lose a single case by death, yet
two slight outbreaks of fever warded them of the risk to 1ife
they were running. They felt the necessity of erecting a
proper builing, butthe medical men began to sele in the at
of advancerient of our city, and in the intereàts of the Medi-
cal College/it was time for the Maternity Hospital to be plac-
ed under the sheltering wing of the General Hospital. The
union quite agreed with them, and towards the end of 1887,
after the second fever outbreak, the Maternity Hospital was .
cloeed and this chapter of the history of the Christian Wo-
men's Union came to an end.

Previous to this, on the lst January, 1885, in a small
building adjacent to the Maternity Hospital, the Children's
Home was opened by the Christian Women's Union. It was

primarily for the benefit of the little. ones born in the hospital
that the home was intended, but other needy children were
adnitted. The family soon outgrew the narrow limits of the
premises, and in April of that same year the home was moved
to a more commodious house on Assiniboine Avenue, foot of
HIargrave Street. In September, 1896, it was again trans-
ferred to a larger building on Portage Avenue.

When the Children's Home was removed to a distance
from the Maternity Hospital a separate committee was ap-
pointed from the members of the C. W. U. for its manage-
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ment, and this was a stepping stone to its flnally becoming
au independent institution.

Those whose hearts went out to work among the children
applied for and obtained from the Legislature an Act of In-
ccrporation as the board of management to the Children's
Home, June, 1897.
. After the Children's Home had been removed from under
its.care, and the Maternity Hospital ha>l become an adjunct
of the General Hospital, the C. W. U. had a breathing space.
There was one phase of work open to them akin to their for-
mer hospital work and springing out of it, but it was feared
that this would not carry with it public sympathy. They
hesitated, but there was money in the treasury,.over $1,000,
and they felt that they should without delay put it to some
useful purpose.

That the corporation was so wealthy came about as fol-
kws : From the opening of the Maternity Hospital there had
been admitted from time to time patients froa the immigrant
sheds. The General Hospital authorities, it was understood,
were paid at the rate of 60c. a day for each immigrant patient
placed under their care and the board of tkv Maternity Hos-
pital concluded that they should be paid at the same rate for
each immigrant woman sent to them, and the bills were
made out accordingly. Year after year these accounts
were disputed by the Dominion Government, but finally the
sum amounting to $900, was paid, just when the society
seemed require it least.

It w not long before the C. W. U. became convinced
that it w their duty toopen up a refuge forwomen. The
Maternity HSpital had served the double purpoae of an hos-
pital and a refuge and now the members of the union felt
that an industria home was neleded for the ind of inmates
that were likely to come under their care. But the incon-
veniences of a rented house for the purpose of the homs, de-
termined thé union to build, so as to have roim for industrial



branches to occupy and improve the momy
on hand enabled the board to pa'y ready cash for the spacioua
lots now occupied by the home. It is an ideal -site on Mc-

.Dermot Ave., West of Kate Street, as the work is so closely
connected with that of the General Hospital

In 1889 the union was chiefly engaged in canvassing the
city for-the means to erect.the priesent building, whieh is evi-
dence in itself that a generous response was met with. The
last instalment of a mortgage debt upon the property was paid
in 1895. In Marh, 1891, the new home was opened with
a receptionugiven to a large gathering of friends. Since that
time it has been found very suitable for the work with a few
improvements made from time to time. As since the open-
ing of the SalvationZ'Army Rescue Home, the more degraded
cases are not admitted to the C.W.U. home. It is suitable as
a refuge for aged poor women as well as for respectable mar-
ried women coming to the city for medical care, indeed, there
are no hard and fast lines drawn with regard to admision, ex-
cepting several very necessary ones in the by-laws; each case
is considered when the application is made. The home shelters
about sixty inmates during the year. Such is a brief sketch
of the history of the Christian Women's Union. It has some-
times been in financial and other difficulties, but a kind pro-
vidence has always helped it over hard times. The presidents
were Mesdames Galton, Rowe and George Bryce; vice presi-
dents, Mesdames Whitla, Lynch, Wesbrook, Somerset and
O'Loughlin; secretaries, Mesdames Irwin, Doupe, J. B.
Monk, (Dr.) -Kerr, (Dr.) Orton, Oulver, C. H. Campbell,
T. J. McBride, Atkinson and McClenaghau; treasurers,
Miss Jazdowski, Mrs. M. T. Hunter and Mrs. (Dr.) Clark.
The present officers are: Patroness, Mrs. Patterson; hon.
president, Lady Schultz; president, Mrs. George Bryce; lt
vice-president, Mrs; J. B. Somerset; 2nd vice-president, Mre.
J. M. O'Loughlin; recording secretary, Mrs A. V. MeClena-
ghan; corresponding secretary, Mis. J. J. Roy ; treasurer,

-
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Mrs. . W. Clark; financial secretary, Mrs. Wm. Bathgate;
Sunday service, Mrs. George MeVicar. The O. W. U. has a
Governmnt grant of $250 and a civic grant of $300.

THE CHILDREN'S HOME.

Nothing appeals so strongly to the hearts of the benevo-
lent as work among the children. To smooth the path of-life
for little footsteps will -surely earn the blessing of im who
said, "Suffer little children to come unto me, and forbid them

enot, for of such is the kingdom of heaven."
It has been already said in the sketch of the Christian

Women's Union that the -Children's Home was commenced
by that society in 1885, and conducted by it until 1887, when
it became independent and obtained an Act of Incorporation
of its own. Those who applied for this Act were the follow-
ing officers : Mrs. Sarah MeKilligan, first directress; Mrs.
Georgina Smith, second directres; Mr. Ella Ross, third dir-
ectress; Mrs. Agnes Culver, secretary; Mrs. Lizzie Hunter,
treasurer, and others to the number of thirty constituting the
board of management. The annual membership fee was $3;
the fee for life membership, $25.

The board was given power to contract with a parent plac-
ing a child under its care for absolute control of the child,
uinless the parent by paying a yearly amount towards its main-
tenance shows a desire to retain possession of bis or her child.
The children to be admitted into the home are boys under 6
years of age, and girls under 14, more or less destitute. Chil-
dren over whom the board of managment has absolute control
are, if possible, given for adoption, an.d it may be of interest
to know the terms on which adoptions are made : "When a
person makes application for a child, two certificates of char-
acter, one from a clergyman and the other from a justice of
the peace, are required to be furnished. Three months are
generally allowed for approbation and, if everything is satis-
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factory, an indenture, in duplicate, is signed by the contract-
ing parties. The children must be well clothed and sent to
school for a certain number of months in the year.'' Pay-
ments of five dollars per year are required until the child is
10 years old; fifteen dollars when the child ahall have at-
tained the age of 16 and twenty dollars when the .hild is 18
years of age. This sum is payablé to the child, by the cor-
poration, when the guardianship of the home ceases. !A
written annual statement of the condition and welfare of the

THE CHILDREN'S HOME

child is also required, so that the children are never lost sight
of by the home during their years ôf minority."

The three buildings in which the children had succes-
sively been housed had all been found comfortless and incon-
venient and at last, after much discussion as to a proper loca-
tion, a very fine lot and private residence on River Avenue,
Fort Rouge, was purchased in 1888. The house was almost
rebuilt and extensively added to and when it was opened to
receive the littie one there was a mortgage debt of $3,000
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,upon it. This wa a somewhat daring venture, but the pro-
motors had great -faith in the love of mankind for little chil-
dren. Additions both to the lot and building have been
made from time to time, and some years ago a pavilion was
built on the grounds so that the children may be shaded from
the sun when at their play. In the Jubilee year, 1897, a
stone foundation was put under the home and a new kitkhen
and boys' dormitory were added.

In the home there is only room for 55 children, and it is
nearly always filled to its utmocapacity. The children of
school age attend the public sec lu Fort Rouge, and their
teachers give a good account of4m. They also accompany
Miss Hynd, the. matron, to divine service.

AlmoSt ever since.the home was removed to Fort Rouge
Mr. E. F. Stephenson has conducted Sunday School there with
his able coadjutor, Misa Nixon, and some other assistants.
ThebChildren's Home board have been most fortunate in their
niu tron, Miss Hynd. Her loving, prayerful care and her in-
dividual study of each child has transformed a mere public
institutio¢ into a true home for the little ones.

So many young children unable to do much for them-
selves necessitates the keeping of a staff of domestic, so that
the institution is an expensive one, but it has the sympathy
of the public and is well supported. Through the kindness

t of friands, too, the little ones never fail to have a merry
Christmas time, and delightful sleigh rides during the winter,
as well as their little pienics in the park and freS rides on the
street cars during the summer.

The 'ef difficulty the board has had to encounter has
been e payment of the debt on their property, but this is
now lu a fair way of being discharged. They have stili a
mortgage of $3,000, but they have $2,000 lu their building
fund, and when the other thousand is reached the Ohildreu's
Home will have a very valuable property without ineum-
brance.
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Since the Act of Incorporation the offleers have been:

Patroneses, Lady Schulta and Mr. Patterson; Lady Taylor,
lt directres, still in office; Mrs. A. M. Pattonat present
acting directres; 2nd and 3rd directresses, Mesdames Taylor,
Fisher, Cowley, Wesbrook, Patton, Hart, Ewar. Mrs. Cul-
ver, segretary now in office; Mrs. Nairn, assistant secretary.
The board sugered los in the death of its first treesurer, Mis.
M. T. Hunter, and of its second treasurer, Mrs. Jas.. Fisher,
when, they had held office but a short time.

Mrs. Wickson has been treasurer since 1889. The society
has a grant of $500 from the Government and $500 from the
City Council.

THE PRISONERS' AID ASSOCIATION
was organized in 1890. Its object was to attend to the spirit-
ual welfare of the prisoners of both sexes in Winnipeg during
the period of their incarceration and to seek their reformation
in every possible way, to provide for their comfort and to pro-
mote iheir interests on their discharge from priso and to
seek the inprovements of prisons and police stations when
found to be necessary.

Shortly after the organization of the association an Act
of.Incorporation was asked for and obtained.

This Act applies only to the City of Winnipeg and at the
next sitting of the Legislature an amendment to the Act will
be asked for extending the operation of the association to the
Province of Manitoba.

The f-st officers were: Rev. Mr. Davis, president ; Mr.
W. R. Mulock,. treasurer; Mr. Thomas Gill, secretary. The

Reir. C. C. Owen is the present president. This association
has a small Government grant.
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ABERDEEN ASSOCIATION.

The formation of the Aberdeen Association was suggested
on October 19th, 1890, in the first address given by the Coun-
tess of Aberdeen befóre a Winnipeg audience. During a trip
taken by Lord and Lady Aberdeen through Southern Mani-
toba, they were struck by the lonely aspect of the prairie
homes, and the dearth of reading matter everywhere apparent
seemed to them a great privation, particularly for those who
had been well educated and accustomed to read. The result
of Lady Aberdeen's words on this subject was the formation
of the parent branch f the association, at a meeting called on
November 12th, 1890, at the Clarendon Hotel, where a num-
ber of ladies undertook to supply the lonely ho'mes of the
Northwest with instructive and entertaining literature, Lady
Taylor was appointed president.

The task of supplying the whole of the Northwest witl
reading matter was found too much for the Winnipeg ladies
to attempt and there are now twelve branches of the associa-
tion thr'oughout Canada, with headquarters in Ottawa. Even
the literary resources of Canada were found too limited for
the required supply, and a branch association was formed in
England,.with the Marchioness of Dufferin and Ava as presi-
dent, and with free rooms in the Canadian Institute, London.
Through the influence of Lady Aberdeen, the association is
indebted to the post office authorities, the Dominion and
Allan lines of steamers, and the Canadian Pacifie and Grand
Trunk railways for free transportation of parcels. The
English railways give half fare rates. '

But it is the work of the Winnipeg branch that we have
chiefly to sketch on this oècasion.

The local Government have kindly given the use of rooms
in the Lands Titles Office for the reception and distribution
of literature and from 300 to 400 parcels are sent out month-
ly. The secretary keeps up a carrespondence with the re-
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cipients of this literature and somètimes the description of the
loneliness of prairie life given in the letters received by her
are truly touching.

The association endeavors as far as possible to consult the
taste of the different readers, and sometimes the senders are
startled by such an instance as the following, which shows
the necessity for the circulation of pure literature in our coun-
try. A young girl who had requested some reading to be
sent to her home was asked by letter what kind of literature
the family enjoyed most. She replied that they preferred
sensational stories of the Jesse James type.

THE LITERATURE MOST USEFUL TO THE ABERDEEN

ASSOCIATION.

Weekly and monthly religious and church papers and pe-
riodicals of all denominations, in good condition ; agricul-
tural, scientifl and technical journals of the current year
only; fashionable papers of the current year only; good ma-
gazines of any date, in good condition. Sets of magazines in
consecutive numbers for the year are moet valuable. • Sunday
School papers of all denominations for teachers and scholars,
Christmas annuals and pictures, children's books of all kinds,
standard works of history, biography, travel and fiction, all
good books, French, German and Scandinavian and Gaelic
literature for applicants speaking those languages ; daily pa-
pers are not required on account of their transient interest
only. The denominational periodicals are sent to the charge
of the different clergy in the Northwest to be judiciously dis-
tributed by them.

In the Jubilee year, 1897, packets of seed from the Ex-
perimental Farm, Ottawa, were sent through the ssociation
to its readers so that their homes might be beautiful by the
growth of trees and flowering planta. A portrait of Queen
Victoria, also sent through the association, now graces many
of these homes on the plains.
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The incomp of the association is derived from fees and
subscriptions. The outlay for twine and wrappers amounts
to quite a large sum during the year. Qfficers : Lady Tay-
lor, president; Mrs. Wickson, acting president; Mrs. Kirby,
secretary; Miss Thomson, treasurer; Mrs. Wm. Clark, act-
ing ireasurer.

THE FREE KINDERGARTEN ASSOCIATION.
The Free Kindergarten Association, founded in' 1892,

gathersthepoor children at the north end of the city into their
school room in the old Swedish Church, Ellen Street. In
the place of liberty to run about the streets, something good
has to be given, so the ragged and hungry little ones are cloth-
ed, fed and provided with pleasant ocèupation of acknowled-
ged educational value.

The work of the association is based upon the principles
laid down by the founder of the kindergarteu systm, Freder-
ick Freobel, and the promoters believe that the proper educa-
tion of children during the first seven years of their lives does
much to reduce poverty and crime in any community.

But the members of the Free Kindergarten Association
do not limit their benevolent work to the dhildren alone.
They get acquainted with the homes of the little ones, visiting
the mothers, tending the sick among them, and organizing,
mothers' meetings .for their improvement. Special classes
for sewing are held both for the mothers and little girls, and
sometimes the members invite the mothers to a tea, a kind-
ness that is mucl appreciated by these poor overwrought
housewives. With the help of some of thé gentlemen of the
city Boys' Brigades have been recently organized in connec-
tion with the work, one for the smaller and one for the big-
ger boys. Already some signa of improvement are noticed
among the rougher lad&.

The services of Miss Barnett, the principal, have beei in-
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valuable, both in the school room ami outaide. She lias the
faculty of gaining the hearts both1 of the children and the
mothers.

Miss Barnett has the assistance of two pupil teachers in
her work. The school has an average daily attendance of
sixty children. • Some people think that when the kindergar-
ten system is introduced into the public schools the work of
this association will'no longer be necessary, but this is quite a
mistake. The Free Kindergarten members practice a kind of
charity that would be quite outside the duties of the teachers.
in the public schools. The work of the association has been
of great value among the foreign elements -of our city. This
association depends for its revenue on fees and subseriptions
and many a weary step the membérs have to take in the inte-
rests of their sometimes empty treasury. We may imagine
the joy of these ladies, when two years ago they became pos-
sessed of a piano at a moderate price. The City Council has
pronised a small grant ($100) for this year, 1899. The pre-
sidents have been : Mrs. Dexter, MIrs. Fisher, Mrs. Godfrey
Parkçr and Mrs. R. H. Bryce at present in office. Secreta-
ries : Miss Colby (Mrs. Cook), Mrs. R. H. Bryce, Mrs. T. J.
M4cBride, Mrs. Atkinson, Mrs. Chown, Mrs. Jardine, at pre-
sent in office. Treasurers : Miss Dolly Maguire (I1rs.
Hughes), Mrs. W. L. McKenzie, Mrs. Capt. Robinson, at pre-
sent in office.

THE WINNIPEG LODGING AND COFFEE
HOUSE ASSOCIATION.

This association for work among men was commenced by
Holy Trinity Church in 1893, during the curacy of the Rev.
J. Page. It was designed to provide a cheap boarding place
for industrious men, and also to induce the idle to become in-
dustrious. The principle-of the association is to give no as-
sistance without some equivalent in work or payment. A



small building was rented in 1893 by Mr. Page and Oapt.
Graburn, with accommodation for about twelve men. A
large building was rented in 1894 and soon after the work
outgrew the bounds of a parochial undertaking, so that

;

THE WINNIPEG LODGING AND COFFEE HOUSE

it deserves a notice in a sketch of the public charities of
Winnipeg. In order to place the institution on a broader
basis a joint stock company was formed in 1898, with shares
of $10 each.

A substantial brick building was erected by this company
on Lombard street, with a roomy woodyard for the employ-
ment of the men. The building was opened on the 1st of
November, 1898. This lodging and coffee house, as it is cal-
led, is expected to be self-supporting, indeed, it is now more
than paying its way-so it may soon be removed from the
list of Winnipeg charities. These men have to pay for their
beds 10c. and 15c, for their meals 5c., 10c, 15c., according to
quality, making it possible to obtain 3 meals and a bed for
25c. a day. The new building has accommodation for 100
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men. Since its opening it has had not less than 55 men sleep-
ing there and sometimes it has over ninety.

The mission hall in the building is rented at $12.50 a
month.

Holy Trinity Church still looks after the spiritual welfare
of the men and rents the mission hall for the holding of Sun-
day school, night school, Gospel services, etc. Mrs. Scott
acts as deaconess in connection with the mission, and.does un-
told good in a quiet way by relieving suffering and distress of
all kinds. The association is desirous of .having a lay worker
to live in the building, and look after the spiritual welfare of
the men. In the meantime this duty is taken in turn by
some member of the brotherhood of St. Andrew, interested in
the mission. Chairman of the association, Mr. J. H. Brock;
secretary;- Mr. H. Whitla; treasurer, Mr. E. H. Taylor.

SALVATION ARMY.
This body has been doing good work in Winnipeg since

the early eighties, and it has at present two charitable insti-
tutions, a Rescue Home for Women, at 486 Young Street,
and a Shelter for Men, 686 Main Street, with a wood yard,
corner of Princess and Fonseça Street, in connection with the
lutter, for the employment of the men. The Rescue Home
is also of the nature of an industrial home. As the.Slvation
Army does iot publish any annual report of their institutions
it is difficult to obtain information as to the means employed
by them or the result of their work, but there is good reason
for our faith in its beneficent nature. The Rescue Homè has
a Government and civic grant.
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THE DOOR OF HOPE.
Since its establishment in the city thq Women's Christian

Temperance Union has engaged with great diligence in en-
deavoring to "rescue the perishing." Its latest enterprise is
the Door of Hope. This institution was opened about two
years ago under the auspices of the union, but recently it has
been handed over to a managing board of ladies of the city.
An experienced trained matron, Mis Boland, a short time ago
came from New York to take charge of the home, which is
situated at 468 Bannatyne Avenue. Its object is the reform-
ation of the inebriate women we so frequently read of in the
press reports of the police court and station.

The Door of Hope has met with a severe loss by the re-
cent death of Mrs. George C. Mills, a most devoted temper-
ance woirker and one of the chief promoters of the institu-
tion.

The work of this institution is still in a tentative state, but
we trust that its success will soon be assured.

GIRLS' HOME OF WELCOME ASSOCIATION.
The work of this association is designed to serve the dou-

ble purpose of providing a good class of domestics for our
comnmunity and of securing a shelter and protection for girls
of that class coming without friends to the country. It also
affords a boarding place for girls from the city or country
when temporarily ont of situations. A girl arriving at the
home for the first time is allowed her board for 24 hours,
afterwards she has to pay at the rate of $2.50 z week.

The home owes its origin to Miss Fowler from London,
who generously furnishes $500 a year for three years and also
her personal superintendence for the sane length of time.
The work of the home is conducted in harmony with the home



of the National Emigration.Society of Montreal. Théboard
of directors consist of 36 ladies with an advisory board of 7
gentlemen. Miss Fowler, who is sacrificing so much, natur-
ally has an important voice in the management. The mem-
bership fee is $1.00, the Government grant $500. The chief
difficulty the association has is to get a good class of domestics
to come to the country. The members do not like to run the
risk of furnishing the passage money, but in the short time
the home has existed, it hasg meen, and in future it ought to
be, useful in connection with the Government immigration.
The association does not yet possess a building of its own,
and as the present roomy house on Assiniboine Avenue, allow-
ed free of rent by thq. Hudson's Bay Company, is only fit
for a summer residence, it is at present closed until the open-
ing of the spring immigration. The officers are : President,
Mrs. Parker ; vice-president, Mrs. W. H. Adams; secretary,
Mrs. Bole; treasurer, Mrs.. Crotty.

THE CHILDREN'S AID ASSOCIATION.

In 1898 the local Legislature passed a statute called "An
Act for the Better Protection of Neglected and Dependent
Children." To insure the carrying out of this Act, an asso-
ciation was formed in this city called the " Children's Aid
Association," and this is the youngest of our city charities.
By the enactment, this association may be empowered by a
county court judge or magistrate to take possession of any
destitute orphan children, or any child that is being ill-used,
ieglected or corrupted by its parents or guardians. The name
"child" applies in this Act to any boy under 14 or any girl

under 16 years of age. The association is thus constituted
guardian to such child.

The children are first taken to a temporary shelter on

Mayfair Avenue, Fort Rouge, which has been rented by the

29
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association and furnished at the expense of the Government
and City Council, where they begin to learn the advantage of
being clothed, fed and kindly treated. As soon as possible
foster homes are got for them at a distance from their former
evil environment, so that they may be likely to grow up res-
pectable and useful citizens ofthe state. Since its recent
commencement, the association has had 24 children under its
care, 5 have been ad 9pted and 7 placed in foster homes or
otherwise provided for, and 11 are now in the shelter. The
demand from the country for children is far greater than the

supply. As the association is carrying out the.enactment of
the Government and also relieving the City Council of oner-
ous burdens, liberal grants from each are expected. Presi-
dent, Mr. Daniel Mclntyre; secretary, Dr. Blakely; treas-
urer, Mr. W. M. Johnstone.

WOMAN'S COUNCIL.

Most of the Women's Associations are afflliated with the
local Council of Women of Winnipeg, organized by Lady
Aberdeen. At the annual meeting of the council short ac-
counts of each society are read and the members have thus an
opportunity of getting interested in each other's under-
takings.

OTHER CHARITIES.

It is not within the scope of this paper to give an account
of the temporary work of the city relief committee or the
benevolence and charity of the different organizations of the
Freemasons, Oddfellows, Foresters, United Workmen and the
like, which in their active charity or their bequeathment and
other benefits do so much to relieve suffering. The latter
are private charities, and their reports are not accessible. The
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benevolent Scottish and other national associations are help-
ful in relieving the necessities of their poor and needy fellow
countrymen, but their work does not require buildings and
so, though it is very real, it is not easily seen.

Time forbids to notice the work of ladies'. charitable so-
cieties, young people's associations and other bands of Chris-
tian workers connected with the churches. These are all
doiùg excellent service, and exemplify one of the truest works
of a living Christianity, which is to "remember the poor,"
and to "visit the fatherless and the widows in their affliction."

Ci


